
CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

OCTOBER 26, 2015 
 
 

CHAIR           BOARD MEMBERS   
STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL 
        REID RABON 
COUNCIL LIAISON     MICHELLE ARMSTRONG 
DOUG HAMMERSENG       DEAN KUITUNEN 
 
 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance: 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Approval of Minutes from July 27, 2015, Regular Meeting 

 
4. Citizen’s Forum 

 
5. Public Hearings 

a. 10875 Settlers Lane – Application for Conditional Use Permit and amendment to 
Planned Unit Development of a 24-unit Senior Living Facility (GreenHouse) 

 
6. Unfinished Business  
 
7. New Business 
 
8. Reports and Announcements 

a. Planning Commission Reports 
b. Liaison Report 
c. Staff Reports 

 
9. Adjournment 

 
 
 



 
CITY OF HANOVER 

PLANNING COMMISION MEETING 
JULY 27, 2015 

 
 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
Chair Kolasa called the July 27, 2015, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  Members 
present were Chair Stan Kolasa, Jim Schendel, Reid Rabon, Michelle Armstrong and Dean Kuitunen.  
Also present were City Planner Cindy Nash and Administrative Assistant Amy Biren.  Council Liaison 
Doug Hammerseng was absent.  Also present were members of the public:  Dave Libert, Cynthia Wicka, 
and Lucas Grant. 
 
Approval of Agenda 
MOTION by Schendel to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Armstrong.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Approval of Minutes from the June 22, 2015, Regular Meeting 
MOTION by Schendel to approve the June 22, 2015, minutes as presented, seconded by Kuitunen.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum 
 None. 
 
Public Hearing 
 10231 Beebe Lake Road—Variance on Use of Accessory Building 
Kolasa closed the regular meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:02 pm.  City Planner Cindy Nash 
presented the variance application submitted by Dave Libert to permit animals in an accessory building 
that is 20 feet from the property line.  Nash gave a brief history of the property and the use of the property 
and accessory building.  Staff recommended approval of the variance with the following conditions:  
additions to the building or construction of new buildings would not be allowed; and the property must be 
in compliance with all other regulations pertaining to animal units. 
 
Dave Libert explained that he has the property listed for sale and has potential buyers that would like to 
have animals and use the accessory building to house the animals. 
 
Cynthia Wicka, 578 Kayla Ln, asked questions about grazing and exercising the animals as well 
as the number of animals allowed.  She expressed concern about the number of animals in the 
future.  Nash responded to her questions by explaining the ordinances related to animals. 
 
Biren read two letters from residents that were unable to attend the meeting.  John and Julie 
Ganfield, 10171 Beebe Lake Road, expressed support for allowing animals in the accessory 
building.  They did have one concern related to the placement of manure.  Nash stated that per 
Hanover’s ordinances, manure could not be within 75 feet of the property line.  Jodi and David 
Thomsen, 566 Kayla Lane, said that they would be comfortable having any animal in the 
accessory building with the exception of pigs. 
 
Kolasa closed the public hearing at 7:22 pm and reopened the regular meeting. 
 
MOTION:  Armstrong moved to approve recommending the variance for 10231 Beebe Lake 
Road with the conditions stated in the memo from staff, seconded by Rabon. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 



 
 
Unfinished Business 
 At the previous meeting, Rabon had asked what the hours of operation for construction 
were in the neighboring cities.  He had received a concern from a resident as there had been a 
builder working at 9:30 pm on a Saturday.  Hanover’s hours of operation are from 7 am to 10 
pm.  The neighboring cities were very similar to this, with some hours ending at 9 pm.  The 
members agreed that there did not need to be further action. 
 
New Business 
 None 
 
Reports and Announcements 
Planning Commission: 
Kolasa said that he had toured the areas of concern in Crow River Heights related to a previous 
meeting and met with some of the residents.  He said that ponding water did not seem to a 
concern this season and that areas were draining correctly. 
 
Schendel and Rabon suggested that an item for future discussion would be requiring a final grade 
certification before occupancy or having an escrow related to it as some houses are occupied 
during winter months when grading is not possible. 
 
Liaison Report: 
 None 
 
Staff Reports: 
Nash informed the members that the Greenfield project which would need access from 107th 
Avenue in Hanover had been taken off the table in Greenfield and the application for 
development withdrawn. 
 
Biren updated the members on a variety of subjects:  The CSAH 19 Trail is almost completed;  
the Historic Bridge project will close bids on July 30th and work will start after Hanover Harvest 
Festival; and Duininck’s Pit is listed for sale.  The state surcharge on building permits changed 
as of July 1st, decreasing from $5 to $1.  Flood Zone Maps from FEMA will be changing in 
November of this year and may have an effect on properties in Hanover.   
 
There will be a public hearing on pavement management for the City of Rogers Tuesday night, 
July 28th, at 7 pm.  They will be discussing franchising fees as well as traditional assessment 
methods.  The franchising fee is a newer option.  Members may want to attend the meeting for 
educational purposes as Hanover will be looking at pavement management in the near future. 
 
Hanover Harvest Festival is this weekend and they are still looking for volunteers. 
 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Schendel to adjourn, seconded by Rabon.  Motion carried unanimously.  Meeting 
adjourned at 7:46 pm. 
  
ATTEST: 

 
     
Amy L. Biren, Administrative Assistant 



   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 
PO Box 251 

Medina, MN  55340 
763-473-0569 

Memorandum 

Date: October 22, 2015 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE: Greenhouse – 10875 Settlers Lane North 

The City has received applications for a Conditional Use Permit, amendment to existing Planned Unit 
Development and site plan.   

Overview of Request  

The subject property is a lot of record in the Bridges at Hanover.  It is zoned R-1A with a Planned 
Unit Development overlay. 

The building consists of 16,614 square feet on two levels, with 21 surface parking stalls.  The total 
parcel size is approximately 6.44 acres.   

Previous concept plans for this project showed two 24-unit buildings on the site.  The builder has since 
decided to construct only one building.  As such the application and resulting recommendations reflect 
the current submitted plans containing only the one building. 

In the existing Planned Unit Development (PUD), a 75-unit senior housing facility was required to be 
constructed on this property. The proposed building containing 24 units is smaller than currently 
required and hence is not in compliance with the requirements of the existing PUD, which is why an 
amendment to the PUD is under consideration. 

Under the current zoning ordinance, senior housing would be permitted as a Conditional Use in this 
zoning district. 

The City currently owns the property, and has a purchase agreement to sell the property to the 
Developer. 

The project has been reviewed by City staff, the City Planner, and City Engineer. 

 

Amendment to Existing Planned Unit Development 

The existing original/approved plans for the Bridges at Hanover call for a 75-unit senior 
housing facility to be located on this site, along with associated parking and possibly a 



Greenhouse – 10875 Settlers Lane North 

10/22/2015  2 

daycare facility.  The proposed plans for a 24-unit senior facility is much less intense for the 
neighborhood. 

The City previously coordinated with the Bridges at Hanover HOA to obtain an easement for 
access to this parcel across a strip of land that the HOA owns that lies between the Settlers 
Lane and the property.  Access to this site is proposed to be located within the easement area. 

The original development also included plans for a trail to be constructed on Outlot H.   

Staff has reviewed and determined that a reduction in size of the facility in terms of number 
of units, height, and building footprint are more compatible with the neighborhood than the 
existing approved PUD. 

 

Conditional Use Permit 

In order to grant a Conditional Use Permit, the City must make various findings related to the 
proposed use as follows: 

1. The use will not create an excessive burden on existing parks, schools, streets and other 
public facilities and utilities which serve or are proposed to serve the area.    

Staff Note:  The proposed reduction in units from 75 to 24 will create less of a 
burden on parks, schools, and streets which serve the area. 

2. The use will be sufficiently compatible or separated by distance or screening from 
adjacent agricultural or residentially zoned or used land so that existing homes will not be 
depreciated in value and there will be no deterrence to development of vacant land.  

Staff Note:  The proposed project has been designed in such a way as to be more 
architecturally similar to a home than to a traditional senior living apartment 
building.  The scale of the building has also been reduced from the original PUD 
plan for the neighborhood. 

3. The structure and site shall have an appearance that will not have an adverse effect upon 
adjacent residential properties.  

Staff Note:  The structures appearance is compatible with the surrounding single-
family and townhome land uses. 

4. The use, in the opinion of the City Council, is reasonably related to the overall needs of 
the City and to the existing land use.  

Staff Note:  The lot proposed for this use was originally planned for by the City 
Council to contain a 75-unit senior living facility.   

5. The use is consistent with the purposes of the zoning code and the purposes of the zoning 
district in which the applicant intends to locate the proposed use.  

Staff Note:  The R-1A zoning district allows for this use as a Conditional Use. 
6. The use is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan of the City.  

Staff Note:  The use is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan, which 
supports the inclusion of various housing types serving all stages of the life-cycle.  
Hanover currently does not have housing suitable for this life-cycle. 

7. The use will not cause traffic hazard or congestion.  



Greenhouse – 10875 Settlers Lane North 

10/22/2015  3 

Staff Note:  Due to the small scale of the facility, a traffic impact study has not 
been completed.  Staff has determined that the anticipated traffic will not cause a 
traffic hazard or congestion. 

8. Existing homes and/or businesses nearby will not be adversely affected because of 
curtailment of customer trade brought about by intrusion of noise, glare or general 
unsightliness. 

Staff Note:  Staff does not anticipate that the proposed use will bring noise, 
glare, or general unsightliness.  On occasion, emergency response vehicles 
may turn on their sirens when approaching or leaving the facility.  However, 
this situation is not anticipated to occur unless there are other vehicles in the 
area at the same time. 

 

Recommendation 

City staff/consultants recommend approval of the Amendment to the PUD, Conditional Use Permit, 
and site plan with the following conditions: 

1. An 8 foot bituminous trail meeting City standards shall be constructed on Outlot H, 
Bridges of Hanover in locations that are adjacent to Lot 40, Block 8, Bridges at Hanover at 
the sole expense of the Developer.  Plans shall be prepared by the Developer and 
submitted to the City Engineer for review. 

2. The site plans for the project shall be amended to show the following: 

a. A sidewalk from the building to the trail. 

b. A landscape plan showing the location, species, and size of all plant materials shall 
be submitted for the review and approval of the Planning Commission. 

3. The development must be constructed in substantial conformance with the plans dated 
October 

4. The Developer shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City. 

 

 

 

   




















































	10-26-15 Agenda
	UCHAIRU           UBOARD MEMBERSU
	STAN KOLASA      JIM SCHENDEL
	REID RABON
	UCOUNCIL LIAISONU     MICHELLE ARMSTRONG
	DOUG HAMMERSENG       DEAN KUITUNEN


	07-27-15 Minutes Draft
	GH App
	GH Site Plan

